

States reporting Closures						
*Information is kept current to the best of our ability, but may not reflect real time changes at the jurisdiction, given the volatility of the COVID-19 emergency						
State	Close Date	Open Date	Closure Details	Modified date	Waivers Sited	Waiver Information Source
AK		03/22/20	All DMV offices are currently open to the public. However, to comply with COVID-19 social distancing recommendations, the DMV will be augmenting lobby operations and highly recommends that customers schedule an appointment to avoid high wait times. As of 6/2/20 many additional services are available by appointment including registration and title changes. <a href="http://doa.alaska.gov/dmv/office/index.htm">http://doa.alaska.gov/dmv/office/index.htm</a>	01/22/21	COVID-19 Disaster Order of Suspension  The following changes are in effect until June 30th, 2020: * The requirement of out of state drivers to obtain an Alaska driver's license within 90 days of entering Alaska is suspended * The requirement to obtain an Alaska title and registration within 30 days of purchase is suspended * The prohibition of driving with studded tires from May 1st to through September 15th is suspended * Driver's licenses that expire during the pandemic period will remain valid**	<a href="http://doa.alaska.gov/dmv/office/index.htm">http://doa.alaska.gov/dmv/office/index.htm</a>
AL	03/18/20	06/08/20	All MV offices are now open to the public. Many county offices require an appointment for service. WKLS was informed that DMV is only accepting certified checks for lien adds which has created a delay in acceptance and processing of orders.	07/31/20		
AR	03/17/20		Many offices open but practicing social distancing. Encouraging contacting specific office before travel for hours and services available.	06/25/20	Ark. Code Ann. § 27-14-1004(a) imposes a late registration penalty of \$3.00 for each ten days a person fails to properly register a motor vehicle until the penalty reaches the same amount as the annual license fee of the vehicle, which may range from \$17.00 to \$30.00. Under EO 20-06, DFA has suspended through April 16, 2020 the penalty under Ark. Code Ann. § 27-14-1004(a) for the late registration of a motor vehicle or the late renewal of a registration of a motor vehicle.**	<a href="https://www.dfa.arkansas.gov/news/details/registration-of-motor-vehicles-suspension-of-assessment-statutes.4.6.2020">https://www.dfa.arkansas.gov/news/details/registration-of-motor-vehicles-suspension-of-assessment-statutes.4.6.2020</a>
AZ		06/24/20	Due to the ongoing health situation, MVD offices are not accepting walk-in customers. You must have an appointment. MVD offices are limiting the number of customers allowed indoors at one time. MVD Office Closures Jan 25: Buckeye, Clifton and San Manuel because of staffing limitations related to the public health situation, occasional MVD office closures are required. Contact MVD customer services if you are unable to perform services online. Call 602.712.2700	01/22/21	NOT waiving any penalty fees - At this time penalty fees are not being waived. They are required if the registration is renewed after the expiration date**	Email from state dmV
CA	03/23/20	06/09/20	Ahe California Department of Motor Vehicles has reopened its field offices to assist customers with appointments and selected service needs that must be completed in a DMV field office during the COVID-19 pandemic. The DMV also reopened its 10 industry business centers (IBC) to process business-related transactions. The IBCs will also operate by appointment only. •Paying registration for a vehicle impounded because of registration-related issues •Reinstating a suspended or revoked driver license •Applying for a reduced-fee or no-fee identification card •Processing commercial driver license transactions •Applying for a disabled person parking placards (this can also be done by mail using the REG 195 (PDF) form) •Adding an ambulance certificate or firefighter endorsement to a driver license •Verifying a transit training document to drive a transit bus •Processing DMV Express customers for REAL ID transactions, if time and space allow •Vehicle verifications <a href="https://www.dmv.ca.gov/portal/news-and-media/dmv-reopens-remaining-field-offices-to-public/">https://www.dmv.ca.gov/portal/news-and-media/dmv-reopens-remaining-field-offices-to-public/</a>	01/22/21	60-day grace period following expiration date beginning 3/16.**	AAMVA
CO	03/15/20	05/11/20	All state DMV offices have reopened by appt only except Trinidad for Driver Services. All title work is being done at the county level and the status of each county is available at <a href="https://dmv.colorado.gov/closures-and-delays">https://dmv.colorado.gov/closures-and-delays</a>	01/21/21	Temporary Vehicle registration late-fee waivers: Effective immediately, the state is permitting counties to waive late fees for vehicle registration and renewals. This is in effect for the period of the Governor's emergency order. Customers are encouraged to use online services or self-service kiosks to complete eligible transactions. **	<a href="https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/dmv/how-covid-19-closure-affects-vehicle-services">https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/dmv/how-covid-19-closure-affects-vehicle-services</a>
CT	03/18/20	05/20/20	All offices now by appointment only. Check location services before traveling: <a href="https://portal.ct.gov/DMV/Offices/Offices/Directions-and-Office-Hours">https://portal.ct.gov/DMV/Offices/Offices/Directions-and-Office-Hours</a> Transactions for documents mailed and dropped off are being completed as quickly as possible, in the order in which they are received.	07/07/20	3/13/2020 – Temporary waiver issued for IRP requirements for commercial vehicles entering CT to respond to COVID 19 emergency 3/19/2020 – Vehicle, vessel, temporary registrations expiring between March 10, 2020 and June 8, 2020 extended 90-days **	<a href="https://www.ctdmv.info/">https://www.ctdmv.info/</a>
DC	03/25/20	until further notice	All Service Centers, Adjudication, and Brentwood CDL are by "Appointment Only."	01/22/21	DMV has extended the expiration date for DLs, IDs, vehicle registrations, inspections, ticket payments and ticket adjudication responses expiring Mar 1, 2020 -Mar 31, 2021 until 45 days after the health emergency ends.**	<a href="https://dmv.dc.gov/release/dc-dmv-service-update-march-25-2020">https://dmv.dc.gov/release/dc-dmv-service-update-march-25-2020</a>
DE		06/30/20	As of close-of-business Thursday, July 2, 2020, the DMV will no longer be taking new appointments, with the exception of new motor carrier applications. Previously-made appointments for DMV services will be honored. By 4:30pm Thursday, the DMV appointment tool will be taken offline. In addition, callers will no longer be able to make appointments over the phone. Starting Monday, July 6, 2020, walk-in service will resume at 60% capacity. Please visit the DMV webpage to view current wait times for all DMV locations. The DMV reminds customers that transactions may also be completed using myDMV online services, self-serve kiosks, or drive-thru.	10/05/20	Extended renewals for driver licenses and registrations and waiving all late fees until further notice Urge the use of our drive thru lanes for registration transactions, including handicap placards and temporary tags Late renewal fees are being waived until further notice. This includes Driver License, Vehicle Registration, Title Transfers, and Trailer Tags All emissions testing for vehicles are suspended until further notice - Vehicles can still be titled and registered without emissions.**	<a href="https://docs.google.com/document/d/e/2PACX">https://docs.google.com/document/d/e/2PACX</a>
FL	03/19/20	06/04/20	Due to COVID-19, FLHSMV is providing modified in-office services by appointment only. We will continue to provide services online at GoRenew.com, by telephone and email. For information on tax collectors or license plate agents, please visit their respective websites <a href="https://www.flhsmv.gov/locations/">https://www.flhsmv.gov/locations/</a> All Electronic Lien Title (ELT) transactions are being processed as normal without interruptions.	01/21/21	Waives the delinquent renewal fees during the extension period for these driver licenses and identification cards.**	<a href="https://www.flhsmv.gov/COVID-19/">https://www.flhsmv.gov/COVID-19/</a>

GA	03/18/20	5/12/2020	All DDS sites are open for limited drivers transactions including first issuance. Limited Driver Services will be provided by appointment only. All customers must fill out an application prior to visiting the center. For Vehicle services offered at county tag offices, call ahead to ensure they are open: <a href="https://mvd.dor.ga.gov/motor/tagoffices/SelectTagOffice.aspx">https://mvd.dor.ga.gov/motor/tagoffices/SelectTagOffice.aspx</a>	05/12/20		
HI		06/24/20	Honolulu- All satellite city halls will start reopening July 1, 2020. Appointments for in-office visits to satellite city halls will be available starting June 29, 2020. Effective 6/1/20 Hawaii county offices will reopen for limited in-person services. VRL offices in Pahoa, Hilo and Kona will be open for limited services from 8 a.m. to 4 p.m., Monday through Friday. The Na'alehu (Ka'u) office will be opened on Tuesdays and Wednesdays by appointment only. The Waimea VRL office will remain closed until further notice.	10/05/20	No penalty waiver in place**	<a href="http://www.honolulu.gov/csd/mvinformation.html">http://www.honolulu.gov/csd/mvinformation.html</a>
IA		03/24/20	Title and registration applications and registration renewals for individuals and businesses are handled directly by county treasurer offices. Titling services by mail or make an appt to come to the Ankeny office only, all other counties appear to be handling ID services and testing. In some cases, mail, email or fax services are available. <a href="https://iowadot.gov/mvd/Services">https://iowadot.gov/mvd/Services</a>	10/05/20	Vehicle registrations will not be considered expired if the expiration date of the registration is 60 days before 3/17 or if the registration expires any time during this declared disaster. New or transferred vehicles: Customers will not be required to obtain a title and registration within 30 days. This waiver will expire when the proclamation of disaster emergency has ended. Vehicles purchased from a dealer: Customers will not be required to obtain license plates on a vehicle purchased from a dealer within 45 days. This waiver will expire when the proclamation of disaster emergency has ended.	<a href="https://iowadot.gov/mvd">https://iowadot.gov/mvd</a>
ID	03/18/20		Some county locations closed to public. DMV office hours and services are determined by county sheriffs and assessors, and vary statewide. <a href="https://itd.idaho.gov/dmvstatus/">https://itd.idaho.gov/dmvstatus/</a>	01/21/21	90-day extension for expirations between 3/1 and 5/31 (until 6/30 to renew). Drive insured insurance mandate has been delayed until 7/1.**	<a href="https://itd.idaho.gov/itddmv/">https://itd.idaho.gov/itddmv/</a>
IL	03/17/20	06/01/20	The following facilities are temporarily closed: James R. Thompson Center, Chicago, 69 W. Washington Street, Chicago, Chicago West, 5301 W. Lexington Avenue and Chicago Heights.	01/26/21		<a href="https://www.cyberdriveillinois.com/special/covidfaq32720.pdf">https://www.cyberdriveillinois.com/special/covidfaq32720.pdf</a>
IN	03/18/20	06/15/20	As of 6/15/20 BMV is now fully open to the public through walk in or appointment. Processing agents noting long lines and severe limitations in the number of transactions allowed. A slow down in the mailing of processed titles will be noticeable. 128 BMV branches will be open to serve customers by appointment only on Monday, May 11. Whenever possible please complete transactions online, thru the contact center, or by returning items via USPS mail. Please be aware the following BMV branches will be closed on the dates listed below.  Tipton - Closed from Tuesday, Jan. 26 / Update will be posted upon reopening Greenwood - Closed from Wednesday, Jan. 27 / Reopening Thursday, Jan. 28	01/26/21	Waives penalty fees for late driver's license, vehicle registration renewals, title transactions, salvage titles and late ORV or snowmobile registration renewals for the next 60 days**	<a href="https://www.in.gov/bmv/4363.htm">https://www.in.gov/bmv/4363.htm</a>
KS	04/06/20	by appt only as of 5/14/20	Offices are beginning to reopen by appt only dependent upon stay at home orders and county government office openings. <a href="https://www.ksrevenue.org/reopening.html">https://www.ksrevenue.org/reopening.html</a> Kansas' 105 county treasurers handled vehicle, registration, tags and renewals. The treasurers also process vehicle titles and can register vehicles including personalized license plates.  Application for a certificate of title and registration must be made through the local county treasurer's office where the vehicle is garaged. <a href="https://kansastreasurers.org/index.php/directory/">https://kansastreasurers.org/index.php/directory/</a>	01/26/21	The Kansas Department of Revenue Division of Motor Vehicles shall extend vehicle registration renewal deadlines for state based passenger vehicles, motorcycles, trucks and trailers. A vehicle registrant will not be charged with late fees or interest on delinquent vehicle registration, if the registrant does not file within the registrant's normal month renewal period**	
KY	03/18/20	06/01/20	As of 7/7/20 The one stop shop in Frankfurt is only accepting drop off packets, no appts or in person services available. Vehicle registration at the County Clerk's office in the owner's county of residence or the county where the vehicle is primarily operated. Work on existing titles should be done with the county lien/title was filed. Contact the county for hours: <a href="https://drive.ky.gov/Pages/County-clerks.aspx">https://drive.ky.gov/Pages/County-clerks.aspx</a>	01/26/21	"The expiration date of vehicle or vessel registration certificates, vehicle license plates, vehicle tag certificates and handicapped parking permits and other deadlines mandated by the Department of Vehicle Registration, including lien filings, are hereby extended for a period of 90 days, subsequent to their current expiration dates, and any additional fees for the late renewal of or application for such licenses, permits, certificates, cards and plates are hereby waived.  The Division of Motor Vehicles shall extend truck, truck tractor, and trailer registration renewal deadlines for state based International Registration Plan ("IRP") registrants. A state based IRP registrant will not be charged with late fees or interest on delinquent vehicle registration.  The Division of Vehicles shall extend any temporary, state sixty-day permits for recently purchased vehicles. Kansas residents who have purchased a new or used vehicles on or after January 1, 2020, and are operating with a valid sixty-day permit, may continue to use such temporary tag beyond the sixty-day period and the permit shall continue to authorize road use while this order is in effect. **	<a href="https://drive.ky.gov/Docs/Official">https://drive.ky.gov/Docs/Official</a>
LA	03/20/20	05/18/20	Many OMV and Public Tag Agent offices now open. <a href="https://offices.omv.la.gov/">https://offices.omv.la.gov/</a>	01/26/21	The expiration date of temporary registration plates issued pursuant to La. R.S. 47:519 and La. R.S. 47:519.2 which expired on or before March 9, 2020 is suspended until May 10, 2020  The expiration date of temporary registration plates issued pursuant to La. R.S. 47:462 et seq., which expired on or after March 9, 2020 but before May 10, 2020 is suspended until May 10, 2020**	<a href="https://gov.louisiana.gov/assets/ExecutiveOrders/27-JBE-2020-COVID-19.pdf">https://gov.louisiana.gov/assets/ExecutiveOrders/27-JBE-2020-COVID-19.pdf</a>

MA		08/10/20	<p>An appointment-only reservation system has been implemented for certain necessary and required in-person transactions at the RMV's operating Service Centers. These essential transactions include certain Commercial Driving License (CDL) transactions and certain new registrations. Boston/Haymarket, Brockton, Danvers, Fall River, Greenfield Lawrence, Leominster, Martha's Vineyard, Nantucket, Pittsfield, South Yarmouth, Plymouth, Worcester and Springfield RMV service centers. Registration drop off services available at Boston/Haymarket, Braintree, Chicopee, Haverhill, Milford, Taunton and Wilmington Service centers 9am-4pm daily. The following types of transactions can be dropped off by both commercial and individual customers, including casual sales, campers, trailers and motorcycles.</p> <p>Eligible Transactions:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>Register and title a vehicle</li> <li>Transfer plate to a new vehicle</li> <li>Reinstate a registration</li> <li>Apply for a registration only</li> <li>Transfer a plate between two vehicles</li> <li>Register previously titled vehicle</li> <li>Transfer vehicle to surviving spouse</li> <li>Registration amendments</li> <li>Plate cancellations</li> </ul>	01/26/21	<p>The registrar of Motor Vehicles is hereby authorized to extend the expiration dates of Massachusetts operator licenses, permits, and identification cards which have expired or will expire between the dates of March 1, 2020 and the later of April 30, 2020 or the date on which the declared emergency is terminated **</p>	<a href="https://www.mass.gov/doc/march-15-2020-rmv-license-extensions/download">https://www.mass.gov/doc/march-15-2020-rmv-license-extensions/download</a>
MD	03/20/20	6/8/2020	<p>All MDOT MVA branches are now open to customers by appointment only. Estimates indicate that the state is approximately 2-3 months behind in processing transactions</p>	07/20/20	<p>Vehicle registration, driver's licenses, identification cards, business licenses, and permits (including handicap parking permits) will not expire until the 30th day after the state of emergency has been lifted **</p>	<a href="http://www.mva.maryland.gov/covid-19.htm">http://www.mva.maryland.gov/covid-19.htm</a>
ME	03/17/20	06/01/20	<p>All motor vehicle branch office locations are open By Appointment Only Monday through Friday, 9:00 AM to 4:00 PM, and closed legal holidays; To ensure adequate staffing levels at the branch offices, the Springvale BMV branch will be closed until further notice, and mobile unit visits will not resume at this time.</p>	07/31/20	<p>Secretary Dunlap is working with the Maine Legislature to extend all registrations, temporary plates, registrations, disability placards, State ID cards and driver's licenses that are expiring during this state of emergency. More information will be available soon **</p>	<a href="https://www.maine.gov/sos/news/2020/bmvofficesclosed.html">https://www.maine.gov/sos/news/2020/bmvofficesclosed.html</a>
MI	03/24/20	06/01/20	<p>To protect staff and public health, offices will only provide services by online appointment, and only offer critical services that cannot be completed online, by mail or at a self-service station. Customers can make an appointment up to six months in advance or for the next day online at Michigan.gov/SOS.</p> <p>Appointments from 11 a.m. to 3 p.m. can be booked up to six months early. Appointments from 9 a.m. to 11 a.m. and from 3 p.m. to 5 p.m. are reserved for customers to book one day in advance.</p> <p>Morning appointments open for booking at 8 a.m. EST the previous day. Afternoon appointments open for booking at noon EST the previous day. Monday appointments open for booking Friday.</p>	01/26/21	<p>No extensions offered at this time but late fees will be waived. Michigan State Police are aware of the closure and have been asked to exercise discretion with expired credentials. **</p>	AAMVA
MN	03/28/20	05/18/20	<p>Many of the statewide locations now open. Please consult list for services offered before traveling. <a href="https://dps.mn.gov/divisions/dvs/locations/Pages/find-office-locations.aspx">https://dps.mn.gov/divisions/dvs/locations/Pages/find-office-locations.aspx</a> Independently owned and operated deputy registrar and driver's license agent offices will be able to open their doors to customers, at 50 percent occupancy with social distancing measures in place, May 18. Estimates show that the state is about 3 months behind in processing transactions</p>	06/19/20	<p>Vehicle registration, driver's licenses, identification cards, business licenses, and permits (including handicap parking permits) will not expire until the 30th day after the state of emergency has been lifted **</p>	<a href="https://dps.mn.gov/divisions/dvs/news/Pages/frequently-asked-questions.aspx">https://dps.mn.gov/divisions/dvs/news/Pages/frequently-asked-questions.aspx</a>
MO		03/18/20	<p>Many independently owned and operated licensing offices throughout the state have temporarily adjusted their business operations or are by appt only. <a href="https://dor.mo.gov/offloc/">https://dor.mo.gov/offloc/</a></p>	01/21/21	<p>Vehicle owners with registrations (license plates) expiring in the months of March and April have been granted an automatic two-month extension and will be able to continue operating their vehicles on Missouri roadways without penalty until they can apply for renewal. Vehicle owners with license plates expiring in March 2020 will have until May 31, 2020, to renew their license plates without paying a late penalty at a license office. Similarly, vehicle owners with license plates expiring in April 2020 will have until June 30, 2020, to renew without paying a late penalty.</p> <p>The time frame in which a vehicle safety and emission inspection is valid for the March and April license plate expirations will also be extended an additional 60 days. For waiver of late registration penalty and extension of the safety and emission inspection time frame, vehicle owners must visit a license office.</p> <p>Applicants for title will not be assessed a late title penalty when visiting a license office, effective immediately. This waiver will continue through April 30, 2020. **</p>	<a href="https://dor.mo.gov/news/news-item/uuid/ad40f685-6b65-4df0-b376-c473bd50261e">https://dor.mo.gov/news/news-item/uuid/ad40f685-6b65-4df0-b376-c473bd50261e</a>
MS	03/17/20	06/08/20	<p>All branches open as of 6/8/20 with social distancing protocols. <a href="https://www.driverservicebureau.dps.ms.gov/Drivers/Driver_License_Locations">https://www.driverservicebureau.dps.ms.gov/Drivers/Driver_License_Locations</a></p>	01/26/21		
MT		03/18/20	<p>Most counties providing services remotely or by appointment. Updates available by county at this link. <a href="https://dojmt.gov/driving/mvd-service-updates/">https://dojmt.gov/driving/mvd-service-updates/</a></p>	10/05/20	<p>A 90-day extension will be provided to dealerships to submit paperwork to county offices and vehicle owners to title and register any vehicles transferred after March 16, 2020. Renewals may be completed online up to 30 days past the month shown on the vehicle's registration tab. **</p>	<a href="https://dojmt.gov/montana-expands-online-driver-license-renewal-and-moves-deadlines-for-registering-vehicles/">https://dojmt.gov/montana-expands-online-driver-license-renewal-and-moves-deadlines-for-registering-vehicles/</a>
NC	03/17/20		<p>For the health safety of our customers and employees during the COVID-19 pandemic, some N.C. Department of Motor Vehicles driver license offices closed Wednesday, March 18. Before visiting an office, please check to see if it is open using the link below: <a href="https://www.ncdot.gov/dmv/offices-services/locate-dmv-office/Pages/dmv-offices.aspx">https://www.ncdot.gov/dmv/offices-services/locate-dmv-office/Pages/dmv-offices.aspx</a></p>	01/26/21	<p>The open offices will be transitioned to handle appointment-only visits and will limit the number of customers allowed inside at the same time, depending on the office size. **</p>	<a href="https://www.ncdot.gov/dmv/offices-services/locate-dmv-office/Pages/dmv-offices-closed.aspx">https://www.ncdot.gov/dmv/offices-services/locate-dmv-office/Pages/dmv-offices-closed.aspx</a>

ND	03/23/20		We are providing on-site services which are available by APPOINTMENT ONLY. For Motor Vehicle or Driver License Services click here to make an appointment online or call 1-855-633-6835. Many services are also available online. <a href="https://www.dot.nd.gov/dotnet2/view/mv/sites.aspx">https://www.dot.nd.gov/dotnet2/view/mv/sites.aspx</a>	01/26/21	The Governor's Emergency Declaration has waived expiration dates for driver licenses and motor vehicle registrations from March 1, 2020 until declared disaster has ended. Motor vehicle services such as license plates and titling can be done by mailing in paperwork. Vehicle renewals can be done online, at a self-service kiosk or by mail. The NDDOT is waiving Motor Vehicle kiosk fees for renewing your vehicle until the emergency declaration has ended.	<a href="http://www.dot.nd.gov/division/s/exec/covid-19-nddot-information.htm">http://www.dot.nd.gov/division/s/exec/covid-19-nddot-information.htm</a>
NE	03/17/20		The County Treasurer offices, which issue vehicle titles and registrations, may follow a different closing schedule or are available by appointment only. Please check with the County Treasurer for their closing information. <a href="https://dmv.nebraska.gov/locations-table">https://dmv.nebraska.gov/locations-table</a>	01/26/21	The Governor's executive order will waive penalties for late payment of sales tax until 30 days after the order is lifted. While inspections are still required, the deadline by which these must be completed has been extended by the Governor's executive order until 30 days after the order is lifted.	<a href="https://dmv.nebraska.gov/sites/dmv.nebraska.gov/files/doc/F AQ%20-%20Vehicle%20Titling%20%26%20Registration.pdf">https://dmv.nebraska.gov/sites/dmv.nebraska.gov/files/doc/F AQ%20-%20Vehicle%20Titling%20%26%20Registration.pdf</a>
NH		06/02/20	The following DMV locations are open by appointment only: Concord, Dover, Keene, Manchester, Nashua, Newport, Salem, and Twin Mountain. Call 227-4000 to schedule an appointment.  Drop box services are available Monday through Friday from 8 a.m. until 4:15 p.m. at the following locations: Concord, Dover, Epping, Gorham, Keene, Manchester, Milford, Nashua, Newport, Salem, Tamworth, and Twin Mountain.	10/05/20	•Existing vehicle registrations are renewed by your city or town clerk's office. Please visit your town website or call your local town clerk's office for vehicle registration renewal options. • NH DMV 20-day plates as well as NH authorized dealer 20-day plates, issued on or after February 26, 2020 have been given an automatic extension through April 30, 2020.**	<a href="https://www.nh.gov/safety/divisions/dmv/news-events/2020/20200403-options-for-customers-during-pandemic.htm">https://www.nh.gov/safety/divisions/dmv/news-events/2020/20200403-options-for-customers-during-pandemic.htm</a>
NJ	03/16/20	06/15/20	Drop off and pick-up transactions will be processing registration and title work from dealers starting 6/15/20 at designated vehicle centers. Vehicle Centers and Licensing Centers will open to the public Tuesday, July 7, 2020. Website now shows daily the locations that have reached daily capacity before travel. Vehicle centers: Cherry Hill, East Orange, Hazlet, Jersey City, Lakewood, Manahawkin, Medford, Newton, Runnemede, Somerville, S. Brunswick, Springfield, Trenton, Turnersville, Wallington and Washington. <a href="https://nj.gov/mvc/locations/facilitystatus.htm">https://nj.gov/mvc/locations/facilitystatus.htm</a>	01/26/21	All motor vehicle dealer business licenses and dealer license plates expiring on March 31 have been extended to May 31. All International Registration Plan (IRP) temporary cab cards and permanent cab cards expiring in March, April, and May are extended to May 31.	<a href="https://www.state.nj.us/mvc/pdf/about/FREQUENTLY%20ASKED%20QUESTIONS.pdf">https://www.state.nj.us/mvc/pdf/about/FREQUENTLY%20ASKED%20QUESTIONS.pdf</a>
NM	03/27/20	6/1/2020	Social distancing will be practiced so please be aware that we are only allowing a limited number of customers in our lobbies at one time. <a href="https://www.mvd.newmexico.gov/location-events-and-closings/">https://www.mvd.newmexico.gov/location-events-and-closings/</a>	1/26/2021		
NV	03/17/20	06/22/20	Most transactions at DMV offices in Carson City, Henderson, Las Vegas and Reno require an appointment. Rural offices are walk-in based but serve customers from the local area only.	01/26/21	The State of Nevada has granted an automatic 90-day extension on any driver's license, vehicle registration or other document that has an expiration date of March 16 through April 30, 2020. Download and print the Extension Letter to present to law enforcement on demand. Please Don't mail applications, titles or other documents! The DMV is unable to receive or process mail.	<a href="https://dmv.nv.gov/covid.htm">https://dmv.nv.gov/covid.htm</a>
NY	03/16/20	06/01/20	You can make reservations for limited in-person transactions at state-run DMV offices in regions that are in at least Phase 3 of reopening. Reservations will be required and will only be offered for a limited number of critical services that cannot be done online or by mail or dropbox.  DMV offices in the counties of Albany, Onondaga, Nassau, Suffolk, Rockland, Westchester, and the five boroughs of New York City will continue to process registrations and other transactions by mail, and secure drop boxes located at each office. County Clerks that operate DMV offices in the remaining 51 counties of the State are advised to also offer limited in-person transactions as soon as practical after their respective regions enter Phase 3. <a href="https://dmv.ny.gov/dmv/dmv-office-locations">https://dmv.ny.gov/dmv/dmv-office-locations</a>	01/26/21	Expiration dates extended by one month for those expiring up to 4/19. Vehicle safety and emission inspections set to expire on 3/31 or later will be extended until further notice during the COVID-19 emergency.	AAMVA
OH	03/16/20	05/26/20	BMV locations reopen 5/26/20. <a href="https://www.bmv.ohio.gov/locations.aspx#gsc.tab=0">https://www.bmv.ohio.gov/locations.aspx#gsc.tab=0</a>	01/23/21		
OK		04/03/20	license and/or ID card processing by appointment only. Number of customers in the building will be limited. Public will be required to wear a mask that covers nose and mouth and will be required to answer health questions and have temperature taken before being allowed access to the building. OK also utilizes tag agents for processing of any vehicle title	10/05/20		
OR	03/25/20	7/6/2020	Appointments are required for DMV office visits. <a href="https://www.oregon.gov/odot/DMV/Pages/Offices/Index.aspx">https://www.oregon.gov/odot/DMV/Pages/Offices/Index.aspx</a> As of 1/20/21 Oregon turnaround time for completed transactions exceeds 90 days	01/26/21		
PA	03/16/20	06/01/20	Many statewide locations now open. <a href="https://www.dmv.pa.gov/Driver-Services/Pages/Open-Locations.aspx">https://www.dmv.pa.gov/Driver-Services/Pages/Open-Locations.aspx</a> •Commercial Driver License (CDL) transactions, including renewals, replacements, Medical Examiner's Certificates (MECs), date of proof transactions, Hazardous Material Recertifications, and related transactions; •Initial issuance transactions, including out-of-state transfers, ID card issuance, and related transactions; •Photo license services; •Driver license restoration services that cannot be completed online or via mail; •Medical-related testing; and •Non-U.S. citizen transaction processing.	06/19/20	Vehicle registrations, safety inspections and emissions inspections scheduled to expire from March 16 through April 30, 2020, the expiration date is now extended until May 31, 2020. Due to our operational changes, most mailed products will be delayed until normal operations resume.**	<a href="https://www.penndot.gov/page/s/coronavirus.aspx">https://www.penndot.gov/page/s/coronavirus.aspx</a>
RI	03/18/20	05/18/20	RESERVATIONS RI Division of Motor Vehicles is currently open by reservation only. Reservations are available for the Cranston, Woonsocket, Middletown, and Wakefield offices. NO WALK-INS ALLOWED. The Warren and Westerly Branches are temporarily closed until further notice.	01/26/21	The Division of Motor Vehicles is temporarily waiving the requirement for a VIN check on out of state titles to be conducted by your local police station. The VIN will be electronically verified at the time of titling. To ensure customers are not penalized for the actions we are taking to further protect health and safety, the DMV will be extending driver licenses, learner permits, ID's, CLPs, CDLs, registrations, inspection stickers, and disability placards scheduled to expire in the months of March or April 2020 by 90 days.**	<a href="http://www.dmv.ri.gov/">http://www.dmv.ri.gov/</a>

SC		05/13/20	As of May 13, 2020, all but 2 of the 66 SCDMV branches will return to operating five days a week by appointment only from 8:30am-5pm. Allendale and McCormick, will remain open only on Wednesdays. Customers must continue to schedule appointments online to maintain social distancing inside branch offices. <a href="http://www.scdmvonline.com/Locations">http://www.scdmvonline.com/Locations</a>	01/26/21	Extensions to vehicle registrations that are due to expire 3/1-6/30, and will be considered expired as of 7/1.	<a href="http://www.scdmvonline.com/Locations">http://www.scdmvonline.com/Locations</a>
SD	03/16/20	06/01/20	All offices are closed to walk in traffic, but are available by appointment as of 6/1/20. <a href="https://dor.sd.gov/government/county-treasurers/contact-county-treasurers/">https://dor.sd.gov/government/county-treasurers/contact-county-treasurers/</a>	06/01/20	The Motor Vehicle Division requests that law enforcement not ticket March 2020 registration renewals for noncommercial and commercial vehicles expiring on March 31, 2020. These individuals will be given an additional month to renew their registrations. In addition to the March 2020 registration renewals, the Motor Vehicle Division requests temporary seller's permits that expire March 16, 2020 through April 30, 2020, be granted an additional 30 days from the expiration date to get the title transfer documents and payment to the county treasurer and register the vehicle before any law enforcement action is taken. The Motor Vehicle Division will waive any interest and penalties that accrue due to this extension**	<a href="https://dor.sd.gov/newsroom/motor-vehicle-title-and-registration-renewals-extended/">https://dor.sd.gov/newsroom/motor-vehicle-title-and-registration-renewals-extended/</a>
TN		05/18/20	At this time, Driver Services Centers are open while taking precautions to protect the health and safety of our employees and customers. <a href="https://www.tn.gov/content/tn/safety/driver-services/locations/advisories.html">https://www.tn.gov/content/tn/safety/driver-services/locations/advisories.html</a>	01/26/21	Emissions testing requirements are waived through 4/24/20 At this time most State Driver Services Centers remain open Registration renewals that expire in March or April are extended to 6/15.	<a href="https://www.tn.gov/governor/covid-19/faqs.html">https://www.tn.gov/governor/covid-19/faqs.html</a>
TX	03/17/20	05/26/20	When in-person services are unavailable, services and support continue to be provided by mail, email, and phone.  For the most current information regarding TxDMV status, tax assessor office closures, title and registration services visit: <a href="https://www.txdmv.gov/covid-19">https://www.txdmv.gov/covid-19</a> As of 1/15/21 many TX counties are reporting a 6-8 week delay in processing of transactions.	01/26/21	The temporary waiver applies to vehicle owners in all Texas counties as set forth in the above-referenced proclamation and statement. This temporary waiver is in effect until 60 days after TxDMV notifies the public that normal vehicle registration, vehicle titling and related services have resumed. The 60-day period will be the same for all counties. The governor's proclamation did waive any fees that may accrue, though the only fees that apply to a late vehicle registration are the result of a vehicle being cited for being operated without a valid registration.**	<a href="https://www.txdmv.gov/covid-19">https://www.txdmv.gov/covid-19</a>
UT	03/19/20	until further notice	he Motor Vehicle Division of the Tax Commission is making temporary changes to help slow the spread of COVID-19. <a href="https://dmv.utah.gov/contact">https://dmv.utah.gov/contact</a>	01/26/21		
VA	03/17/20	05/18/20	Operational adjustments have been made to accomplish social distancing and prioritize the health and safety of customers and staff. To minimize customer volume at DMV offices and testing sites, appointments are required and are available for specific services generally necessitating in-person service. Customers should use alternate service methods, such as online or by mail, when possible. Most DMV locations have reopened for service by appointment only. Walk-in service is not available. At this time, only specific services are being offered for in-person service. All other transactions should be conducted online at <a href="https://www.dmv.virginia.gov/general/pdf/trans_alternative_svc.pdf">dmvNOW.com</a> or by mail. <a href="https://www.dmv.virginia.gov/general/pdf/trans_alternative_svc.pdf">https://www.dmv.virginia.gov/general/pdf/trans_alternative_svc.pdf</a>	01/26/21	Replacement titles and registration cards can be obtained online and original title and registration transactions can be conducted by mail. Customers who mail in their paperwork should keep photocopies and ship the package with a tracking number. A telephone number or email address should also be provided so DMV can contact them if additional information is needed. For more about obtaining an original vehicle title or registration by mail, including expedited shipping options, see <a href="https://www.dmv.virginia.gov/general/#covid19.asp">Titling and Registration by Mail Process**</a>	<a href="https://www.dmv.virginia.gov/general/#covid19.asp">https://www.dmv.virginia.gov/general/#covid19.asp</a>
VT	03/19/20		All office visits require an appointment. <a href="https://dmv.vermont.gov/locations">https://dmv.vermont.gov/locations</a>	01/26/21	Governor Scott directed DMV to grant a 90-day extension for all license and registration renewals The DMV encourages Vermonters to take advantage of the online and mail options for renewals. 90 day extension for effective 3/16 for vehicle registrations and temporary plates. **	<a href="https://dmv.vermont.gov/press-release/covid-19-90-day-extension-for-renewals">https://dmv.vermont.gov/press-release/covid-19-90-day-extension-for-renewals</a>
WA		03/31/20	Drivers License Services available by appointment in the following locations at various locations: <a href="https://www.dol.wa.gov/appointments/index.html">https://www.dol.wa.gov/appointments/index.html</a> Vehicle licensing offices (VLOs) are contracted through county auditors and may be open. VLOs handle vehicle tabs, boat decals, and new license plates, reports of vehicle sale or transfer of ownership, vehicle/boat registrations, trip permits, replacement titles, and disabled parking placards or tabs. <a href="https://fortress.wa.gov/dol/dolprod/vehoffices/">https://fortress.wa.gov/dol/dolprod/vehoffices/</a>	10/05/20	Mail-in options are also available for a number of transactions, such as vehicle registration, original title transactions, and driver's license renewal. List of counties can possibly provide more detail on any waivers Emphasizing online renewals. Most 3rd party offices are closed or offering modified services like reduced hours or appointments only**	County Contacts <a href="https://info.dol.wa.gov/driver-licenses-expiration-dates-extended-90-days/">https://info.dol.wa.gov/driver-licenses-expiration-dates-extended-90-days/</a>
WI	03/22/20	05/11/20	DMVs are open for all driver license and ID card customers. Driver licenses can be renewed online for most customers. All vehicle transactions must be done online, by mail or 3rd party agents <a href="https://wisconsin-dot.gov/Pages/online-srvcs/find-dmv/default.aspx">https://wisconsin-dot.gov/Pages/online-srvcs/find-dmv/default.aspx</a>	01/21/21		
WV	03/19/20	6/15/2020	DMV in-office transactions are available by appointment only. Customers must make appointments online at <a href="https://apps.wv.gov/Appt/DMV">https://apps.wv.gov/Appt/DMV</a> or by calling 304-558-3938. <a href="https://transportation.wv.gov/DMV/Documents/Regional%20Offices%20Services%20Chart.pdf">https://transportation.wv.gov/DMV/Documents/Regional%20Offices%20Services%20Chart.pdf</a>	01/26/21	The DMV is also extending the expiration date of any driver's license, instructional permit, or vehicle registration with an expiration date in March or April of 2020 for three months from the date of expiration on the face of the document.**	Email from DMV
WY		06/01/20	Many county locations offering appointments, online, mail and over the phone. Contact the specific county for information <a href="http://www.wcta.us/Contact_Info.html">http://www.wcta.us/Contact_Info.html</a>	10/05/20		

Many jurisdictions have reported a backlog of processing of 6-12 weeks due to closures and limited staffing since March. Any specific delay timing that has been reported by the state is notated above.

\*\* WKLS makes no guaranties, representations or warranties as to the accuracy, completeness, adequacy, or timeliness of the information contained on this website including jurisdictional taxes and fees information. WKLS and its data providers and licensors cannot and do not accept any liability for delays, errors or omissions in the information provided by state or other governmental or third party information providers or filing or recording systems. Any information contained on this website is provided for your convenience only and is not to be construed as a legal opinion or advice, or relied on as basis for making business, legal, or other decisions.